
Page 1 of 2 

Agenda for the 

Allendale Charter Township Board Meeting 

Monday, April 11, 2022, 6:00pm 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Guests Present: 

Meeting called to order 

 Invocation given by Adam Elenbaas
 Pledge of Allegiance
 Approve Agenda
 Consent Agenda

o Approval of the March 28, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
o Bills
o Interim Bills

 For information
o Financial Report
o Minutes of the March 21, 2022 Planning Commission Meeting
o Minutes of the March 15, 2022 Meeting of the Downtown Development 

Authority
o Springfield North Estates Memo

 Public Hearings
 Public Comments
 Guest Speakers

o Allendale Public Utilities Update: Public Utilities Superintendent Chad 
Doornbos

 Action Items
o Library Community Room Reservation Agreement
o First Reading: Alderink Rezoning – 5713 Lake Michigan Drive
o First Reading: Marcusse Rezoning – 5630 Lake Michigan Drive
o Concerts in the Park: Band/Performers Contracts

 Discussion Items
o Financial Policy Updates: Minimum Fund Balance Target & Capital and Special 

Projects Fund
o Finance Director Tim VanBennekom: American Rescue Plan Act Update
o Paid Time Off Policy Update 



 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

o Holiday Policy Update 
o MTA Scholarship Resolution Request 

 Public Comments 
 Board Comments 
 Future Agenda Items 
 Adjournment 

 

Our Wi-Fi connection may be used to access the Board Information Packet: 

• Account: ACT_Guest 
• Password: ACTguest 
• File location: www.allendale-twp.org  Agendas and Minutes  Agendas: Township Board 

 

http://www.allendale-twp.org/


Page 1 of 3 
 

PROPOSED 
PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE 
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MARCH SESSION 2nd DAY 
 

The Allendale Township Board of Trustees met at the Allendale Township 
Auditorium, located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, on Monday, March 28, 2022, at 
6:00 p.m. and was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Mr. Elenbaas. 
 
Present: Mr. Zeinstra; Ms. Kraker; Ms. Hansen; Ms. Vander Veen and Mr. 
Elenbaas. (5) 
 
Absent: Mr. Murillo and Mr. Vander Wall (2) 
 
Staff and Guest Present: Bob Sullivan, Legal Counsel; Sergeant Cal Keuning, 
Sheriff Department; Kevin Yeomans, Assistant Administrator; Mary Cook, 
Library Director; Don DeGroot, Exxel Engineering; Terry VanDyken; and 
Lorraine Busman 
 
Ms. Kraker pronounced the invocation. 
 
Mr. Elenbaas led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of 
America. 

 
BOT 22-045 Mr. Zeinstra moved to approve the agenda of today with the following 

amendments: to correct the name of Churchside Estates Preliminary Plat: 
Tentative Approval to Springfield North Preliminary Plat: Tentative Approval 
under Action Items. The motion passed.  

 
BOT 22-046 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve the following Consent Resolutions: 
 

1. To approve the Minutes of the March 14, 2022, Board of Trustees meeting. 
 

2. To approve the general claims in the amount of $215,838.00 and interim 
payments of $66.85, as presented by the summary report for March 29, 2022.  

 
The motion passed.  
 

Items Received for Information 
 

1. Financial Report 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
2. Minutes of the March 7, 2022, Planning Commission Meeting 
 
3. Sheriff Department February Monthly Report 
 
Public Hearings- None 
 
Public Comments and Communications - None 
 

BOT 22-047 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 

 Guest Speakers- None 
 
 Action Items 
BOT 22-048 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve and authorize the Clerk and Supervisor 

to sign Resolution 2022-02; Local Governing Body Non-Profit Recognition for 
Charitable Gaming License for the 2022 Senior Class Parent Committee. The 
motion passed.  

  
BOT 22-049 Mr. Zeinstra moved to tentatively approve Phase I of Springfield North Preliminary 

Plat. The motion passed.  
 
BOT 22-050 Ms. Vander Veen moved to approve the Volunteer Handbook and Applications 

with the recommended edits, which include adding parent/guardian language and 
amending Violence Free Workplace section to reflect the same language as what is 
in the Employee Handbook. The motion passed.  

 
 Discussion Items 
 Mary Cook, Library Director reviewed the proposed Library Meeting Room 

Use Agreement. She outlined the proposed rules and regulations that will 
govern the use of the meeting room 

 
 Mary Cook, Library Director presented proposed Library Advisory Board By-

Laws. She clarified various proposed language updates. 
 
 Ms. Hansen provided an update on the status of the Schoolhouse 

Preservation Committee. She indicated that the Library Advisory Board voted 
6:0 to not support the placement of the VanWestenburg Schoolhouse on 
library property. Ms. Hansen sought direction from the board in how to 
proceed going forward.   

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 Several board members had questions and comments.   
 
 

BOT 22-051 Mr. Zeinstra moved to amend the agenda by adding “Schoolhouse 
Preservation Committee” to the Action Items. The motion passed. 

 
 Action Items 
BOT 22-052 Mr. Zeinstra moved to dissolve the Schoolhouse Preservation Committee. The 

motion passed. 
 
Public Comments and Communications 
 
Public comments were received from: 
1. Terry VanDyken 
2. Lorraine Busman 
 

BOT 22-053 Mr. Elenbaas moved to close public comment. The motion passed. 
 
 Board Comments 
  
 Mr. Zeinstra inquired about the Strategic Planning Work Session. 
 
 Ms. Hansen thanked the Schoolhouse Preservation Committee for their hard 

work and hopes they continue with their efforts of finding a home for the 
VanWestenburg Schoolhouse somewhere within the community.  

  
 Ms. Vander Veen inquired on board meeting dates. 
 
BOT 22-054 Mr. Zeinstra moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:26 p.m. The motion passed.  
 
 
 
                            _________________________     _________________________ 

Jody L. Hansen, Clerk Adam Elenbaas, Supervisor 
Of the Township of Allendale Of the Township of Allendale 

 
 
 
 
 
 



















ALLENDALE CHARTER TOWNSHIP 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

March 21, 2022 
7:00 p.m.   

Allendale Township Public Meeting Room  
 

1. Call the Meeting to Order 
2. Roll Call: 

Present: Longcore, Westerling, Adams, Zuniga, Nadda, Zeinstra 
Absent: Chapla 
Staff and Public Present: Planner Greg Ransford, David and Nancee Kraker 

3. Received for Information:  
4. Motion by Nadda to approve the March 7, 2022 Planning Commission Minutes as presented. Seconded 

by Zeinstra. Approved 6-0 
5. Motion by Longcore to approve the March 21, 2022 Planning Commission Agenda as presented. 

Seconded by Adams. Approved 6-0 
6. Public Comments for non-public hearing item: 

Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for non-public hearing items. No comments 
were made, and Chairperson Longcore closed the public comment section. 

7. Public Hearings: 
A. Map Amendment Applications 

• Philip Alderink – 5713 Lake Michigan Drive 
• Seeking rezoning from R-1 to GC 
Planner Ransford reviewed the project for the Planning Commission and the public. 
Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for this public hearing item. 
David Kraker, a resident of Allendale and neighbor to the property in question, is against 
rezoning this property to GC siting traffic issues and potential effect on property value as 
concerns. Mr. Kraker also had questions regarding setbacks for buildings, parking lots and 
dumpsters to adjacent property lines, and what type of visual barrier would be required between 
GC and residential lots. 
Alan Supran, a resident of Allendale, has questions regarding lighting that would go on this GC 
property. Mr. Supran also concurred with Mr. Kraker regarding traffic issues. 
Seeing no more comments, Chairperson Longcore closed the public comment section. 
Chairperson Longcore addressed the comments regarding traffic and crosswalks stating that those 
items are out of the Planning Commission’s jurisdiction, those fall under MDOT’s jurisdiction. 
Lighting is regulated and in the site plan process applicants would have to provide a photometric 
plan to show that lighting would not spill out onto neighboring properties. Planner Ransford 
spoke regarding the setbacks and stated that parking lots would have to be 30 feet from any 
property line which abuts a residential property. There would be buffering required between the 
properties in the form of a greenbelt with various plantings and the Commission could also 
require a fence or other visual barrier. Planner Ransford clarified that the barrier typically goes 
from the start of the front yard setback. 
Commissioners discussed the best use of this property and agreed that Commercial was the best 
use and that the Commission is very diligent in reviewing site plans and trying to protect 



neighboring properties. They also encouraged the public to come to the meetings to voice their 
opinions when a new project is proposed. 
Motion by Adams to recommend approval of the rezoning of 5713 Lake Michigan Dr. from R-1 
to General Commercial to the Board based on Section 29.01D of the Zoning Ordinance. 
Seconded by Westerling.  Approved 6-0 

• Klynt Marcusse – 5630 Lake Michigan Dr. 
• Seeking rezoning from R-2 & R-3 to GC 
Mr. Klynt Marcusse and Planner Ransford introduced the project for public hearing. 
Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section for this public hearing item. 
A resident asked about the parcel that was seeking rezone. Mr. Marcusse clarified the dimensions 
of the property. The resident also asked about lighting, traffic, height of a building, and setbacks 
for the future use of the property and Mr. Marcusse clarified that those concerns would be 
addressed during site plan review by the Planning Commission when a specific project is brought 
to them. 
Seeing no more comments, Chairperson Longcore closed the public comment section. 
Planner Ransford stated that 35 feet would be the tallest the building could be. 
Motion by Westerling to recommend approval of the rezoning of 5630 Lake Michigan Dr. from 
R-2 & R-3 to General Commercial to the Board based on Section 29.01D of the Zoning 
Ordinance. Seconded by Zeinstra. Approved 6-0 

8. Site Plan Review: None 
9. New Business: None 
10. Old Business: 

A. Tentative Preliminary Plat Application 
• Springfield North (Churchside Estates) – 70-09-25-300-050 & 70-09-25-300-060 

• Seeking Phase 1 of a total of 30 single family residential lots 
Due to water and sewer constraints, the applicant is back to get approval for phasing of the 
project. There are no other changes to the project.  
Motion by Zeinstra to recommend approval of Phase 1 of the Springfield North Tentative 
Preliminary Plat as outlined in the Tentative Preliminary Plat Planning Commission Report to the 
Board. Seconded by Zuniga. Approved 6-0 

B. Master Plan 
Commissioners concurred that the changes proposed by Township legal counsel were acceptable.  
Commissioners discussed moving ahead with the process and swapping out Census data when the 
most current becomes available and opined that this would be acceptable to keep the process moving 
forward. 
Motion by Adams to recommend to the Board the distribution of the 2022 Draft Master Plan for 
Allendale Charter Township. Seconded by Zuniga.  Approved 6-0 

11. Public Comments 
Chairperson Longcore opened the public comment section and seeing no comments closed the public 
comment section. 

12. Township Board Reports 



Mr. Zeinstra reported that the Board approved the Independence Day Fireworks application. 
13. Commissioner and Staff Comments 

Planner Ransford reported that the awnings for Hungry Howie’s and the surrounding tenants in the strip 
mall have been ordered, but because of supply chain issues they are delayed. He also reported that staff is 
still working through the Penske truck issue at True Value. Commissioners and Planner Ransford 
discussed the history of the True Value site and if the renting of the trucks was approved or allowed on 
that site. 

14. Chairperson Longcore adjourned the meeting at 7:54 p.m. 

 
Next meeting April 4, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. 

◊ 



 

Downtown Development Authority Meeting - Minutes 
March 15, 2022 – 7:30am 

 
Present:  Jeremy Borgman, Pierce Roon, Adam Elenbaas, Steve Spriensma, Kristin Corner, Rence Meredith, Robert 
Chapin, Kellen Brusveen. 
 
Not Present:  David VanderWall, Tom Zuniga, Ross Stevens 
 
Guests:  Summer Rietsema, Rebecca Wildeboer, Kyle Hardy, Ellis Luchies 
 
Agenda  
 
1. Opportunity for public comment – None Present 

 
2. Approval of the January 18, 2022 meeting minutes:  Motion – Borgman, Support – Brusveen.  

Motion Passes 
 

3. Enhancement Program Application: Starbase Enterprises (Star Crane): Board was presented 
with an application for a matching grant for updates to the façade, specifically windows, of 
the Star Crane headquarter building.  This location is within the DDA, the application was 
analyzed and vetted by Meredith and Corner, who recommended the DDA agree to match the 
requested funds per the application.  Motion – Meredith: DDA to match funds $11,945 for 
the update as requested by Starbase Enterprises.  Support – Roon.  Motion Passes.  

 
4. Winter Ready Update:  Board was informed that Trail Point Brewery is in the process of 

purchasing the igloos & heaters as was anticipated.  We have not yet received a response 
from Main St. Pub. 

 
5. Chamber of Commerce All In Program: Chamber re-capped the “Allendale All In” marketing 

program and introduced the new Chamber of Commerce director Rebecca Wildeboer.  Board 
was informed that all but $2000 of the committed funding for 2021from the DDA was used.  
The outstanding commitment for the marketing plan still owed is $10,105.65.  Motion – 
Meredith to approve the requested payment for the outstanding amount of $10,105.65.  
Support – Borgman.  Motion Passes.   

 
6. Board was informed by Elenbaas that anticipated expense for the section of sidewalk on the 

west side of 48th Avenue north of M-45 will cost more than expected.  The owner, Metro 
Health, would like feedback as to whether a request for additional financial contribution from 
the DDA would supported.  The Board discussed and no request was made to have the 
applicant return to the DDA.  

 
7. Public comment – None Present 

 
8. Next meeting: May 17, 2022 at 7:30am 

 
9. Adjourn:  Motion – Chapin, Support- Spriensma.  Meeting Adjourned.   



MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees  
From:  Gregory L. Ransford, MPA 

Date:  March 27, 2022 
Re:  Springfield North Tentative Preliminary Plat – Phase One 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Pursuant to the Allendale Charter Township Subdivision Ordinance (ACTSO) and the State of 
Michigan Land Division Act, the Planning Commission recommended approval of Phase One 
of the Tentative Preliminary Plat for Springfield North, which is located on the west side of 
52nd Avenue, north of Pierce Street, with proposed street connections to Lance Avenue, 
Richfield Lane, and Camfield Drive. The plat was originally intended to be sought in its entirety 
but was required to be split into phases until such time a lift station is constructed to complete 
the project. Given this, phase one is that portion connecting from 52nd Avenue to Richfield 
Lane. 
 
Below is a synopsis of the application, the action provided by the Planning Commission, and 
the responsibility of the Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees. In addition, pursuant 
to Section 3.2.2c of the ACTSO, attached is the Springfield North Tentative Preliminary Plat 
Report containing the recommendation of the Planning Commission.  
 
Application  
 
As you know, you recently rezoned the subject property to the Medium Density One-and Two-
Family Residential (R-2) Zoning District, which allows for lots of 80 feet in width and 10,000 
square feet in area, which is generally consistent throughout the proposed development. The 
applicant seeks 30 single-family lots through the construction of an unnamed road, connecting 
from 52nd Avenue to Richfield Lane. 

 
Street Trees 
 
As you are aware, you recently adopted an amendment to the ACTSO to require evidence of 
approval from the Ottawa County Road Commission (OCRC) for the placement of street trees. 
As you will note within the attached submission, the applicant has identified some trees at the 
corner of the proposed unnamed road and Richfield Lane that cannot be planted pursuant to 
the OCRC requirements. The Planning Commission was comfortable with this proposal. 
 
Blocks – Future Phase(s) 
 
The ACTSO limits street blocks to a maximum length of 1,000 feet for residential blocks within 
plats pursuant to Section 4.6(3) – Blocks of the ACTSO. However, pursuant to said section, an 
exception to the maximum may be granted by the Allendale Charter Township Board of 
Trustees. Given this, the applicant formally requested that exemption to the future extension 
of Lance Lane and the Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission agreed with their 
request and provide a recommendation to provide relief in that regard. In advance of their 
consideration of the request, we inquired with the Allendale Charter Township Fire 
Department (ACTFD) regarding whether any concerns would result in the instance of an 
exception. According to Captain and Fire Inspector Tony Dolce, the ACTFD has no concerns. 
While this request is relevant to the future phase(s) of the project, it is warranted to address 
their request during this application in order to provide them with expectations for design of 
the remainder of the development. For your convenience, below is a copy of Section 4.6(3) of 
the ACTSO.  



 
Section 4.6(3) – Blocks, Maximum Length  

 
The maximum length allowed for residential blocks shall be one thousand (1,000) feet long from 
center of street to center of street. An exception to this limitation may be granted by the 
Township Board upon recommendation of the Planning Commission. 

 
Planning Commission Action 
 
Public Hearing 
 
In accordance with Section 71 of the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, the Planning Commission held a public 
hearing on the tentative preliminary plat. Two comments were received from the public concerning drainage and 
traffic. Both concerns were generally resolved during the meeting.   
 
Recommendation 
 
The Planning Commission recommended approval of the request by a vote of 6-0 with one member absent. The 
approval was conditioned on a couple items outlined within the aforementioned Report of the Planning 
Commission.  
 
Board of Trustees Responsibility  
 
Pursuant to Section 3.2.2d of the ACTSO, the Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees shall tentatively 
approve and note its approval on the copy of the preliminary plat to be returned to the applicant or set forth its 
reasons for denial in writing and the requirements that must be met for tentative preliminary plat approval. Given 
that the Planning Commission determined the applicant met the requirements of the ACTSO with conditions, in 
the event the Board of Trustees provides approval of the project, approval confers upon the applicant approval 
of lot sizes, lot orientation and street layout for a period of one (1) year.  
 
Subsequently, the applicant shall return for final preliminary plat approval to the Board of Trustees and provide 
evidence of approval from all relevant authorities (Ottawa County Road Commission, Ottawa County Water 
Resources Commissioner, Ottawa County Plat Board, Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (when 
applicable) and etcetera at the time of submission.    
 
If you have any questions, please let us know. 

 
GLR 
Planner 
 
Attachments 

 
 
 
 
 



Allendale Library Meeting Room Use Agreement 
 

 

   
Updated 3/30/2022 

The meeting room at the Allendale Township Library is available without charge for library/township related groups and local 

non-profit/service organizations and at a charge of $50 for 4 hours for other organizations and individuals. 

The following rules and regulations will govern the use of the meeting room: 

• Availability of the room, as well as requests for its use, can be found at our website www.allendalelibrary.org. All 

reservations must be approved by library personnel before reservation is considered final. 

• The room is available during library hours. Meetings must conclude 30 minutes prior to library closing. 

• Full room (up to 80 occupants) or 2 half rooms (up to 40 occupants each) are available for use. Some technology equipment 

is available for use depending on room reservation. 

• If the room is to be used by minors, a request must be made by an adult who will attend the meeting and be responsible for 

the conduct of those present. 

• Activities sponsored or co-sponsored by the library shall take preference in the use of the room. 

• Light refreshments are permitted. The user may not serve red drink in the meeting room. The user is responsible for all 

supplies, preparation, and cleanup. The user is responsible for setting up chairs, tables, furniture, and equipment prior to the 

meeting and for returning all library property to the designated storage location upon termination of the meeting. The user 

will not use displays, decorations, or additional furniture that will be destructive to the premises. The room must be left in a 

clean and orderly condition. Future use may be denied if this is not observed. 

• Smoking, vaping, gambling, raffles, lotteries, the use of alcoholic beverages and /drugs/tobacco products, and the use of 

open flames are forbidden. 

• Groups must comply with the safety regulations, state laws, and building regulations. 

• Cost of damages to the building, furnishings, and equipment beyond normal wear must be paid by the group scheduled at 

the time of use. The library/township will be reimbursed for any damage to the premises, building, or equipment. 

• The user may not assign, transfer, sublet, or charge a fee to others for the use of the room. 

• These regulations may be altered or added to at the discretion of the Township or Library Boards.  

• Groups may not publicize their activities in such a way as to imply library sponsorship. 

• Payment is due one (1) week prior to the event and may be made at the library circulation desk. If payment is not received 

the reservation will not be confirmed and the room will be made available to rent to another group. Payment for requests 

made less than one (1) week prior to the event must be made at the time of the request. There will be no refund for any 

confirmed reservation that is cancelled less than seven (7) days prior to the schedule use. 

• Exceptions to these rules and regulations may be made at the discretion of the library director. 

Permission to use the community room does not imply Allendale Library or Township endorsement of the goals, policies, or 

activities of any group or organization. The Township and/or its agents assume no responsibility, financial or otherwise, for 

accidents or injuries sustained by individuals or groups using the facilities. The Township and/or its agents are indemnified 

against all liability to persons or property on the premises. The user holds the Township harmless of any and all fines, 

forfeitures, and penalties arising out of the violation of the law. 

I hereby verify that I have read the meeting room policy and agree to abide by the rules set forth above. 

 

____________________________________________________________________________________         ___________________________ 
Contact Printed Name/Signature             Date 
 

_______________________________________________         _______________       __________________________ 
Organization Name      Contact Phone #          Contact Email 

http://www.allendalelibrary.org/


1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees 
From:  Gregory L. Ransford, MPA 

Date:  March 26, 2022 
Re:  Alderink Map Amendment (Rezoning) Application 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
In accordance with Article 29 – Amendments and District Changes; Procedures of the 
Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance (ACTZO), below we provide a synopsis of a map 
amendment (rezoning) request to the Zoning Ordinance Map. As you are aware, the Board of 
Trustees (BOT) is the approving body regarding map amendments.  
 
Board Responsibility 
 
Given that the Township is a charter township, two introductions and readings are required 
by the BOT to formally adopt a map amendment, each of which would occur at two separate 
meetings. Included with the application materials is the formal Zoning Map Amendment 
Ordinance for your consideration of adoption and is part of the first and second readings. As 
the BOT considers the request, your decision should be based on the Rezoning Evaluation 
Factors of Section 29.01D of the ACTZO, which includes provisions from the Allendale Charter 
Township Master Plan (ACTMP), both of which we outline further below. 
 
Request 
 
Philip Alderink seeks to rezone 5713 Lake Michigan Drive, parcel number 70-09-23-400-092 
from the Low Density One-Family Residential District (R-1) to the General Commercial Zoning 
District (GC). The subject property proposed for rezoning contains approximately 1.97 acres 
in area and is currently vacant. 
 
The Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission (ACTPC) provided a recommendation 
of adoption. Below are the relevant ACTMP and ACTZO provisions to assist with your 
consideration of the request, which were also reviewed by the ACTPC. 
 
Master Plan Considerations 
 
Future Land Use Map 

 
The Allendale Charter Township Master Plan and its Map, adopted on July 22, 2013, provides 
for the subject property within the General Commercial Classification, which is consistent with 
the GC Zoning District, as requested by the applicant. Given this, we provide relevant 
provisions from the General Commercial Classification below to assist with your review. 
 
For your convenience, below is a snapshot of the Master Plan Map for the subject parcel and 
surrounding properties.  (Light Yellow = Low Density Residential (LDR), Red = General 
Commercial (GC), Blue Outline = Subject Property) 
 

 



2 

 

 
 
Master Plan Text 
 
General Commercial Classification 
 
Chapter 3 – Goals and Strategies (page 39) of the Master Plan provides: 

 

• Goal: Promote the development, redevelopment, and rehabilitation of industrial and commercial areas 
to provide attractive sites to a variety of enterprises which will strengthen the tax base and provide a 
place of employment for area residents.  

o As a result of the subject property location on Lake Michigan Drive and that it is master planned 
for the equivalent of the GC District, as well as the availability of public utilities at the property, 
it appears this property is ripe for commercial development.  

• Strategy 1: Review existing land uses along M-45 especially between 56th and 64th (on) M-45 and 
determine appropriate locations for commercial development taking into consideration the impact on 
adjoining residential uses. 

o While the property proposed for rezoning is located on Lake Michigan Drive, it is adjacent to 
residential uses to the west and north.  
 

Chapter 5 – Future Land Use, General Commercial (page 62) of the Master Plan provides: 
 

• That GC property will front on Lake Michigan Drive.  
o As you will note in the application materials and as aforementioned, the property proposed for 

rezoning fronts on Lake Michigan Drive. 

• The Master Plan also recommends that those parcels with frontage on M-45 between 56th Avenue and 
60th Avenue be planned for Commercial and Office use to the depth of these parcels. 

o As you will note within the application materials, the property is located between 56th Avenue 
and 60th Avenue.  

 
Zoning Ordinance Considerations 
 
Surrounding Uses and Available Uses 
 
The ACTPC reviewed whether the proposed rezoning would result in a site that is compatible with surrounding 
zoning districts and uses, and is able to support the available uses within the GC Zoning District. The subject 
property is adjacent to single family dwellings to the north, south across Lake Michigan Drive, and to the west. 
Vacant property exists to the east. The property contains sufficient road frontage and acreage. Given his, the 



3 

 

ACTPC found the property to be compatible with surrounding zoning districts and uses, and is capable to support 
the available uses. 
 
Permitted and Special Uses within the GC Zoning District 
 
For your convenience, below are the available permitted uses and special uses that could be conducted on the 
subject property in the instance that the rezoning is granted. 

 
Sec. 14.02. PERMITTED USES – Land and/or buildings in the GC District may be used for the 
following purposes by right:  
 
A. Any generally recognized retail business that supplies commodities on the premises within 

a completely enclosed building. 
B. Personal service establishments conducting services on the premises, such as barber and 

beauty shops, shoe repair, tailoring and dry cleaning, health and fitness establishments, 
and other similar uses. 

C. Office uses. 
D. Medical, optical, dental, chiropractic, physical therapy and similar clinics and services. 
E. Banks, credit unions, and similar financial businesses, including those with drive-through 

facilities. 
F. Restaurants, delicatessens, coffee houses including sit-down and carryout establishments 

excluding those with drive in or with drive through facilities. Outdoor dining is permitted 
where such dining does not encroach upon a minimum of five feet of unobstructed 
sidewalk space adjacent to the curb.  Outdoor dining may be separated from the sidewalk 
only with movable planters, fencing or similar non-fixed barriers provided they do not 
exceed a height of 36 inches including plant material.  Any outdoor dining activity proposed 
for a public side walk or elsewhere in a road right of way must first be approved by the 
Allendale Township Board. 

G. Coin operated laundries. 
H. Dancing, art and music studios. 
I. Libraries, museums, public parks and similar public uses. 
J. Pharmacies including those with a drive-up window. 
K. Catering establishments. 
L. Retail building supply and equipment stores provided there is no outdoor storage or 

display of merchandise. 
M. Retail nurseries and garden centers provided there is no outdoor storage or display of 

merchandise. 
N. Pet shop including grooming services. 
O. Establishments serving alcoholic beverages including establishments which make and sell 

their own alcoholic beverages on site. Live music is permitted subject to any applicable 
State of Michigan regulations. 

P. Veterinary clinics including those which provide kennel services except that outdoor runs 
are prohibited. 

Q. Shops or stores for carrying on the trade of electricians, decorators, painters, upholsterers, 
photographers, similar artisans except metal workers. 

R. Ambulance service establishments. 
S. Funeral home/Mortuary. 
T. The repair or assembly of products sold by a permitted use in this district provided the 

repair or assembly does not constitute the principal use and all such work is performed 
inside.  Repair of motorized vehicles is prohibited as a permitted use. 

U. Indoor recreation establishments and facilities such as bowling alleys, video gaming 
establishments, skating rinks, indoor rock climbing, theaters, swimming pools, auditoriums 
and other similar indoor recreation uses as may be regulated by Section 23.10 herein 



4 

 

excepting those indoor recreation uses which are specifically listed elsewhere in this 
Ordinance. 

V. Utility and public service buildings including fire and police stations without storage yards. 
W. Dwelling units may be permitted as an accessory use within a building of two stories or 

greater subject to the following conditions: 
1. A dwelling unit shall not be located on the ground floor or in a basement. 
2. The dwelling unit shall comply with the minimum floor area requirements of the 

R-4 zoning district. 
3. Access to a dwelling unit shall be separate from the access used by the business 

located in the same building. 
4. One off-street parking space per bedroom in addition to the requirements for the 

principal use shall be provided onsite in accordance with the applicable 
requirements of Article 21 herein. 

5. A building permit shall be obtained to establish a dwelling unit in order to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of this section and also with the Township 
building and fire code and the requirements of the Ottawa County Health 
Department.  The entire building containing the dwelling unit shall also comply 
with or shall be brought into compliance with the Township Building and fire code 
before an occupancy permit is issued for the dwelling. 

 
Sec. 14.03 USES REQUIRING SPECIAL APPROVAL – The following uses may be authorized by the 
Planning Commission subject to the procedures and standards established for special use 
permits in Article 20 of this Ordinance.  
 
A. Vehicle wash establishments both drive through and self-serve if per Section 23.03.E 
B. Vehicle repair shop or garage which performs minor and major such services as tire sales 

and installation; oil changes; brake, shocks and exhaust work; engine analysis and tune-
ups; front end alignments; heating and air conditioning repair, collision and painting work 
and similar vehicle repair services per Section 23.03.B. 

C. Open air businesses including but not limited to: the sale of motor vehicles, farm 
implements, lawn and garden equipment sales and service, motor homes, mobile homes, 
mobile or modular homes, including building materials, supplies, and similar uses. 

D. Restaurants with drive through facilities as regulated by Section 23.04.B. Outdoor dining is 
permitted per Section 14.02.F. 

E. Retail building supply and equipment stores which have outdoor storage or display of 
merchandise. 

F. Retail nurseries and garden centers which have outdoor storage or display of merchandise. 
G. Outdoor recreation establishments such as athletic and recreational facilities, marinas, golf 

courses, golf driving ranges, miniature golf, go cart tracks, batting cages and similar 
outdoor facilities subject to the applicable requirements of Section 23.10 herein.  

H. Indoor gun and archery ranges. 
I. Gas stations with or without restaurants or convenience stores per the requirements of 

Sections 23.03.A herein. 
J. Hotels and motels. 
K. Kennels. 
L. Churches, synagogues, mosques and similar places of religious worship. 
M. Public or private clubs, lodges, and banquet halls or similar places of assembly.  
N. Housing for the elderly including retirement housing, assisted living and nursing facilities. 
O. Mini-warehouse and self-storage facilities. 
P. Business or trade schools. 
Q. Establishments for the repair of small engines, appliances and similar equipment.  All such 

items shall be kept indoors or outdoors in an area screened from view. 
R. Adult and Child Day Care Facility/Child Care Center. 

 



5 

 

Map of the Zoning Ordinance 
 
For your convenience, below is a snapshot of the Zoning Ordinance Map for the subject parcel and surrounding 
properties. (Legend: Salmon = Low Density Multiple Family Residential (R-3), Blue = Planned Unit Development 
(PUD), Yellow = Low Density One-Family Residential (R-1), Purple = General Commercial (GC), Blue Outline = 
Subject Property) 
 

 
 
Rezoning Evaluation Factors 
 
In accordance with Section 29.01D – Procedure for Changes of the ACTZO, and as performed by the ACTPC, the 
BOT shall review the factors therein when considering an amendment to the Zoning Map. Below is a copy of said 
section with our responses in italic font to assist with your review, as provided to the ACTPC. 
 

Section 29.01D – REZONING EVALUATION FACTORS.  
 
In considering a request for a district change, the Planning Commission and Township Board 
should evaluate the extent that the request meets the following: 
 

1. Consistency with the Master Plan text and its maps. 
 

Please see our Master Plan Considerations section above. 
 

2. Compatibility with the existing zoning districts as well as existing and possible future 
uses in those zoning districts. 

 
Please see our Zoning Ordinance Considerations section above 

 
3. The capability of the land to support the uses permitted by the requested zoning district 

and whether the uses permitted are capable of being adequately served by the 
following (a through e): 

 
The minimum lot area and width required by the GC Zoning District is 22,500 square feet 
and 150 feet at the front setback line, respectively. The subject parcel is slightly smaller 
than two acres in area and contains approximately 200 feet of frontage along Lake 



6 

 

Michigan Drive. Given its size and width, as well as access to public utilities, we believe 
the land is capable to support the uses permitted by the GC Zoning District.  
 
a. The existing transportation network. 

 
The subject property abuts Lake Michigan Drive. Given this, we believe the property 
will be adequately served by the transportation network. 
 

b. Utilities. 
 

As aforementioned, public utilities are available at the property. Given this, we 
believe the subject property will be adequately served by utilities.  

 
c. The environment. 

 
We are not aware of any characteristics of the environment that would prevent the 
subject property from supporting the permitted uses. As a result, we believe the 
property will be adequately served by the environment. 
 

d. Other public improvements. 
 

We believe the subject property will be adequately served by other public 
improvements such as electricity, cable, and etcetera.  

 
e. Relevant governmental agencies. 

 
While the rezoning does not include a site plan, we anticipate that other 
governmental agencies, such as the Allendale Charter Township Fire Department, 
will be able to adequately serve the property at such time of application for 
development, particularly because those agencies are included in the review 
process.  

 
Public Hearing 
 
Two public comments were received expressing opposition to the request. Concerns were raised regarding 
setbacks for potential parking, a dumpster, the extent of a visual barrier for a future use, and traffic. 
 
Recommendation 
 
While considering the rezoning evaluation factors and public comment, Commissioner Adams provided a motion 
to recommend adoption. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Westerling and carried 6-0, with member 
Chapla absent. If you have any questions, please let us know. 
 
GLR 
Planner 
 
Attachments 



1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
To:  Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees 
From:  Gregory L. Ransford, MPA 

Date:  March 26, 2022 
Re:  Marcusse Map Amendment (Rezoning) Application 
__________________________________________________________________________ 

 
In accordance with Article 29 – Amendments and District Changes; Procedures of the 
Allendale Charter Township Zoning Ordinance (ACTZO), below we provide a synopsis of a map 
amendment (rezoning) request to the Zoning Ordinance Map. As you are aware, the Board of 
Trustees (BOT) is the approving body regarding map amendments.  
 
Board Responsibility 
 
Given that the Township is a charter township, two introductions and readings are required 
by the BOT to formally adopt a map amendment, each of which would occur at two separate 
meetings. Included with the application materials is the formal Zoning Map Amendment 
Ordinance for your consideration of adoption and is part of the first and second readings. As 
the BOT considers the request, your decision should be based on the Rezoning Evaluation 
Factors of Section 29.01D of the ACTZO, which includes provisions from the Allendale Charter 
Township Master Plan (ACTMP), both of which we outline further below. 
 
Request 
 
Klynt Marcusse seeks to rezone 5630 Lake Michigan Drive, parcel number 70-09-26-227-037 
from the Medium Density One and Two-Family Residential District (R-2) as well as the Low 
Density Multiple Family Residential Zoning District (R-3) to the General Commercial Zoning 
District (GC). The subject property proposed for rezoning contains approximately one acre in 
area and is currently vacant. The applicant seeks to rezone the property to the GC Zoning 
District as a result of the ACTMP Map indicating that properties fronting along Lake Michigan 
Drive between 56th Avenue and 60th Avenue should be rezoned to the GC District. The 
applicant also indicates their interest to subsequently construct an office building. 
 
The Allendale Charter Township Planning Commission (ACTPC) provided a recommendation 
of adoption. Below are the relevant ACTMP and ACTZO provisions to assist with your 
consideration of the request, which were also reviewed by the ACTPC. 
 
Master Plan Considerations 
 
Future Land Use Map 

 
The Allendale Charter Township Master Plan and its Map, adopted on July 22, 2013, provides 
for the subject property within the General Commercial Classification, which is consistent with 
the GC Zoning District, as requested by the applicant. Given this, we provide relevant 
provisions from the General Commercial Classification below to assist with your review. 
 
For your convenience, below is a snapshot of the Master Plan Map for the subject parcel and 
surrounding properties. (Light Yellow = Low Density Residential (LDR), Yellow = Medium 
Density Residential (MDR), Red = General Commercial (GC), White = Agriculture (AG) although 
likely an error on the map, Blue Outline = Subject Property) 
 
 



2 

 

 

 
 
Master Plan Text 
 
General Commercial Classification 
 
Chapter 3 – Goals and Strategies (page 39) of the Master Plan provides: 

 

• Goal: Promote the development, redevelopment, and rehabilitation of industrial and commercial areas 
to provide attractive sites to a variety of enterprises which will strengthen the tax base and provide a 
place of employment for area residents.  

o As a result of the subject property location on Lake Michigan Drive and that it is master planned 
for the equivalent of the GC District, as well as the availability of public utilities at the property, 
it appears this property is ripe for commercial development.  

• Strategy 1: Review existing land uses along M-45 especially between 56th and 64th (on) M-45 and 
determine appropriate locations for commercial development taking into consideration the impact on 
adjoining residential uses. 

o While the property proposed for rezoning is located on Lake Michigan Drive, it is adjacent to 
residential uses to the west and south.  
 

Chapter 5 – Future Land Use, General Commercial (page 62) of the Master Plan provides: 
 

• That GC property will front on Lake Michigan Drive.  
o As you will note in the application materials and as aforementioned, the property proposed for 

rezoning fronts on Lake Michigan Drive. It is important to note that it appears to contain a 
driveway apron on 56th Avenue, which will likely provide access for a future use.  

• The Master Plan also recommends that those parcels with frontage on M-45 between 56th Avenue and 
60th Avenue be planned for Commercial and Office use to the depth of these parcels. 

o As you will note within the application materials, the property is located between 56th Avenue 
and 60th Avenue.  

 
Zoning Ordinance Considerations 
 
Surrounding Uses and Available Uses 
 
The ACTPC reviewed whether the proposed rezoning would result in a site that is compatible with surrounding 
zoning districts and uses, and is able to support the available uses within the GC Zoning District. The subject 



3 

 

property is adjacent to residential uses to the west and south. To the east across 60th Avenue are commercial 
uses with Plantenga’s Cleaners and Fresh Start Restoration, and to the north across Lake Michigan Drive is a 
vacant lot and used auto sales companies. The property contains sufficient road frontage and acreage. Given his, 
the ACTPC found the property to be compatible with surrounding zoning districts and uses, and is capable to 
support the available uses. 
 
Permitted and Special Uses within the GC Zoning District 
 
For your convenience, below are the available permitted uses and special uses that could be conducted on the 
subject property in the instance that the rezoning is granted. 

 
Sec. 14.02. PERMITTED USES – Land and/or buildings in the GC District may be used for the 
following purposes by right:  
 
A. Any generally recognized retail business that supplies commodities on the premises within 

a completely enclosed building. 
B. Personal service establishments conducting services on the premises, such as barber and 

beauty shops, shoe repair, tailoring and dry cleaning, health and fitness establishments, 
and other similar uses. 

C. Office uses. 
D. Medical, optical, dental, chiropractic, physical therapy and similar clinics and services. 
E. Banks, credit unions, and similar financial businesses, including those with drive-through 

facilities. 
F. Restaurants, delicatessens, coffee houses including sit-down and carryout establishments 

excluding those with drive in or with drive through facilities. Outdoor dining is permitted 
where such dining does not encroach upon a minimum of five feet of unobstructed 
sidewalk space adjacent to the curb.  Outdoor dining may be separated from the sidewalk 
only with movable planters, fencing or similar non-fixed barriers provided they do not 
exceed a height of 36 inches including plant material.  Any outdoor dining activity proposed 
for a public side walk or elsewhere in a road right of way must first be approved by the 
Allendale Township Board. 

G. Coin operated laundries. 
H. Dancing, art and music studios. 
I. Libraries, museums, public parks and similar public uses. 
J. Pharmacies including those with a drive-up window. 
K. Catering establishments. 
L. Retail building supply and equipment stores provided there is no outdoor storage or 

display of merchandise. 
M. Retail nurseries and garden centers provided there is no outdoor storage or display of 

merchandise. 
N. Pet shop including grooming services. 
O. Establishments serving alcoholic beverages including establishments which make and sell 

their own alcoholic beverages on site. Live music is permitted subject to any applicable 
State of Michigan regulations. 

P. Veterinary clinics including those which provide kennel services except that outdoor runs 
are prohibited. 

Q. Shops or stores for carrying on the trade of electricians, decorators, painters, upholsterers, 
photographers, similar artisans except metal workers. 

R. Ambulance service establishments. 
S. Funeral home/Mortuary. 
T. The repair or assembly of products sold by a permitted use in this district provided the 

repair or assembly does not constitute the principal use and all such work is performed 
inside.  Repair of motorized vehicles is prohibited as a permitted use. 



4 

 

U. Indoor recreation establishments and facilities such as bowling alleys, video gaming 
establishments, skating rinks, indoor rock climbing, theaters, swimming pools, auditoriums 
and other similar indoor recreation uses as may be regulated by Section 23.10 herein 
excepting those indoor recreation uses which are specifically listed elsewhere in this 
Ordinance. 

V. Utility and public service buildings including fire and police stations without storage yards. 
W. Dwelling units may be permitted as an accessory use within a building of two stories or 

greater subject to the following conditions: 
1. A dwelling unit shall not be located on the ground floor or in a basement. 
2. The dwelling unit shall comply with the minimum floor area requirements of the 

R-4 zoning district. 
3. Access to a dwelling unit shall be separate from the access used by the business 

located in the same building. 
4. One off-street parking space per bedroom in addition to the requirements for the 

principal use shall be provided onsite in accordance with the applicable 
requirements of Article 21 herein. 

5. A building permit shall be obtained to establish a dwelling unit in order to ensure 
compliance with the requirements of this section and also with the Township 
building and fire code and the requirements of the Ottawa County Health 
Department.  The entire building containing the dwelling unit shall also comply 
with or shall be brought into compliance with the Township Building and fire code 
before an occupancy permit is issued for the dwelling. 

 
Sec. 14.03 USES REQUIRING SPECIAL APPROVAL – The following uses may be authorized by the 
Planning Commission subject to the procedures and standards established for special use 
permits in Article 20 of this Ordinance.  
 
A. Vehicle wash establishments both drive through and self-serve if per Section 23.03.E 
B. Vehicle repair shop or garage which performs minor and major such services as tire sales 

and installation; oil changes; brake, shocks and exhaust work; engine analysis and tune-
ups; front end alignments; heating and air conditioning repair, collision and painting work 
and similar vehicle repair services per Section 23.03.B. 

C. Open air businesses including but not limited to: the sale of motor vehicles, farm 
implements, lawn and garden equipment sales and service, motor homes, mobile homes, 
mobile or modular homes, including building materials, supplies, and similar uses. 

D. Restaurants with drive through facilities as regulated by Section 23.04.B. Outdoor dining is 
permitted per Section 14.02.F. 

E. Retail building supply and equipment stores which have outdoor storage or display of 
merchandise. 

F. Retail nurseries and garden centers which have outdoor storage or display of merchandise. 
G. Outdoor recreation establishments such as athletic and recreational facilities, marinas, golf 

courses, golf driving ranges, miniature golf, go cart tracks, batting cages and similar 
outdoor facilities subject to the applicable requirements of Section 23.10 herein.  

H. Indoor gun and archery ranges. 
I. Gas stations with or without restaurants or convenience stores per the requirements of 

Sections 23.03.A herein. 
J. Hotels and motels. 
K. Kennels. 
L. Churches, synagogues, mosques and similar places of religious worship. 
M. Public or private clubs, lodges, and banquet halls or similar places of assembly.  
N. Housing for the elderly including retirement housing, assisted living and nursing facilities. 
O. Mini-warehouse and self-storage facilities. 
P. Business or trade schools. 



5 

 

Q. Establishments for the repair of small engines, appliances and similar equipment.  All such 
items shall be kept indoors or outdoors in an area screened from view. 

R. Adult and Child Day Care Facility/Child Care Center. 
 
Map of the Zoning Ordinance 
 
For your convenience, below is a snapshot of the Zoning Ordinance Map for the subject parcel and surrounding 
properties. (Legend: Olive Green = Medium Density One and Two-Family Residential (R-2), Salmon = Low Density 
Multiple Family Residential (R-3), Blue = Planned Unit Development (PUD), Yellow = Low Density One-Family 
Residential (R-1), Purple = General Commercial (GC), Blue Outline = Subject Property) 
 

 
 
Rezoning Evaluation Factors 
 
In accordance with Section 29.01D – Procedure for Changes of the ACTZO, and as performed by the ACTPC, the 
BOT shall review the factors therein when considering an amendment to the Zoning Map. Below is a copy of said 
section with our responses in italic font to assist with your review, as provided to the ACTPC. 
 

Section 29.01D – REZONING EVALUATION FACTORS.  
 
In considering a request for a district change, the Planning Commission and Township Board 
should evaluate the extent that the request meets the following: 
 

1. Consistency with the Master Plan text and its maps. 
 

Please see our Master Plan Considerations section above. 
 

2. Compatibility with the existing zoning districts as well as existing and possible future 
uses in those zoning districts. 

 
Please see our Zoning Ordinance Considerations section above 

 
3. The capability of the land to support the uses permitted by the requested zoning district 

and whether the uses permitted are capable of being adequately served by the 
following (a through e): 

 
The minimum lot area and width required by the GC Zoning District is 22,500 square feet 
and 150 feet at the front setback line, respectively. The subject parcel is slightly larger 



6 

 

than one acre in area and contains over 200 feet of frontage along Lake Michigan Drive 
as well as approximately 110 feet of frontage along 56th Avenue. Given its size and 
width, as well as access to public utilities, we believe the land is capable to support the 
uses permitted by the GC Zoning District.  
 
a. The existing transportation network. 

 
The subject property abuts Lake Michigan Drive as well as 56th Avenue as descried 
above. In addition, as aforementioned, the site contains a driveway apron on 56th 
Avenue, which is appropriately positioned directly across from an existing 
commercial apron. Given this, we believe the property will be adequately served by 
the transportation network. 
 

b. Utilities. 
 

As aforementioned, public utilities are available at the property. Given this, we 
believe the subject property will be adequately served by utilities.  

 
c. The environment. 

 
We are not aware of any characteristics of the environment that would prevent the 
subject property from supporting the permitted uses. As a result, we believe the 
property will be adequately served by the environment. 
 

d. Other public improvements. 
 

We believe the subject property will be adequately served by other public 
improvements such as electricity, cable, and etcetera.  

 
e. Relevant governmental agencies. 

 
While the rezoning does not include a site plan, we anticipate that other 
governmental agencies, such as the Allendale Charter Township Fire Department, 
will be able to adequately serve the property at such time of application for 
development, particularly because those agencies are included in the review 
process.  

 
Public Hearing 
 
One public comment was received asking for clarification on the location of the property, lighting, traffic, height 
of a building within the GC Zoning District, and setbacks for a future use. 
 
Recommendation 
 
While considering the rezoning evaluation factors and public comment, Commissioner Westerling provided a 
motion to recommend adoption. Motion was seconded by Commissioner Zeinstra and carried 6-0, with member 
Chapla absent. If you have any questions, please let us know. 
 
GLR 
Planner 
 
Attachments 



04/01/22 

1 
 

2022 SUMMER CONCERTS IN THE PARK PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), made and entered into this 1st day of 
April 2022, between Allendale Charter Township of 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401 (the “Township”), and Blue Water Ramblers whose address 
is 644 Hawthorne St NE Grand Rapids, MI 49503, hereinafter referred to as (the 
“Artist(s)”). 
 
 WITNESSETH, the Township contracts for the services of Artist(s) as an 
independent contractor, not as an employee, on the terms and conditions set forth 
below.  Artist(s) agree to render to the Township services as follows: 
 
Name of Artist(s): Blue Water Ramblers 
 

Date of Event: August 2, 2022 
 

Location: Allendale Township Park/Band Shell, 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401. 

 
Type of Show/Event: Concert 

 
Hours of Performance: 6:00p.m. – 8:00p.m. 

 
Compensation:  
  
 Compensation/Agreement: $600.00 (the “Fee”) will be paid at completion of 

performance.   
 
Payment Agreement: 
 
 Check to be issued to: 
 
  Name: _____________________________________________________ 
   
  Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Phone Contact(s): ____________________________________________ 
 
  Email: _____________________________________________________ 
 
  Social Security Number or Federal ID Number: _____________________ 
 

1. Artist(s) Expenses.  The Artist(s) agrees that the Fee is inclusive of all 
expenses, accommodations, traveling expenses to and from the venue, and covers any 
costs incurred by the Artist(s), except as expressly provided in this agreement.  The 
Artist(s) shall be responsible to supply all necessary equipment specifically including, 
but not limited to microphones, instruments, etc.  The Township shall supply electricity.   



04/01/22 

2 
 

2. Force Majeure.  Neither the Artist(s) nor the Township will be liable for 
any failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement where such breach is due to 
any of the following: regulations of public authorities, inclement weather, epidemic, acts 
of God, or any other legitimate cause beyond the reasonable control of the parties. 

 
3. Indemnification.  The Artist(s) is responsible only for its own conduct.  

The Artist(s) will be compensated by the Township for any and all damage done to the 
Artist(s) equipment by the Township, its agents or guests.  The Artist(s) shall indemnify 
and hold the Township harmless from any and all property damage or personal injury 
directly related to the conduct of the Artist(s).   

 
4. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 

accordance with, the laws of the State of Michigan.  The Artist(s) and the Township 
each submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts in the State of Michigan for the enforcement 
of this Agreement.   

 
5. Acknowledgment.  The Artist(s) acknowledges that they have received 

an executed copy of this Agreement and will be sensitive tot eh commonly accepted 
local standards of civility and conduct incidental to their performances. 

 
6. Binding Agreement.  In the event any of the provisions of this Agreement 

are rendered to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding on the parties 
hereto. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby agree and accept the foregoing 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and each of the parties have authorized their 
official representatives to execute on the date as shown herein. 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Performer Printed Name    Township Official Printed Name 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Performer Signature    Township Official Signature 
 
 

Date: _________________________ 



04/01/22 

1 
 

2022 SUMMER CONCERTS IN THE PARK PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), made and entered into this 1st day of 
April 2022, between Allendale Charter Township of 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401 (the “Township”), and The 6-Pak whose address is 4526 
Bekinshire Dr NW Comstock Park, MI 49321, hereinafter referred to as (the “Artist(s)”). 
 
 WITNESSETH, the Township contracts for the services of Artist(s) as an 
independent contractor, not as an employee, on the terms and conditions set forth 
below.  Artist(s) agree to render to the Township services as follows: 
 
Name of Artist(s): The 6-Pak 
 

Date of Event: July 12, 2022 
 

Location: Allendale Township Park/Band Shell, 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401. 

 
Type of Show/Event: Concert 

 
Hours of Performance: 6:00p.m. – 8:00p.m. 

 
Compensation:  
  
 Compensation/Agreement: $600.00 (the “Fee”) will be paid at completion of 

performance.   
 
Payment Agreement: 
 
 Check to be issued to: 
 
  Name: _____________________________________________________ 
   
  Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Phone Contact(s): ____________________________________________ 
 
  Email: _____________________________________________________ 
 
  Social Security Number or Federal ID Number: _____________________ 
 

1. Artist(s) Expenses.  The Artist(s) agrees that the Fee is inclusive of all 
expenses, accommodations, traveling expenses to and from the venue, and covers any 
costs incurred by the Artist(s), except as expressly provided in this agreement.  The 
Artist(s) shall be responsible to supply all necessary equipment specifically including, 
but not limited to microphones, instruments, etc.  The Township shall supply electricity.   



04/01/22 

2 
 

2. Force Majeure.  Neither the Artist(s) nor the Township will be liable for 
any failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement where such breach is due to 
any of the following: regulations of public authorities, inclement weather, epidemic, acts 
of God, or any other legitimate cause beyond the reasonable control of the parties. 

 
3. Indemnification.  The Artist(s) is responsible only for its own conduct.  

The Artist(s) will be compensated by the Township for any and all damage done to the 
Artist(s) equipment by the Township, its agents or guests.  The Artist(s) shall indemnify 
and hold the Township harmless from any and all property damage or personal injury 
directly related to the conduct of the Artist(s).   

 
4. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 

accordance with, the laws of the State of Michigan.  The Artist(s) and the Township 
each submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts in the State of Michigan for the enforcement 
of this Agreement.   

 
5. Acknowledgment.  The Artist(s) acknowledges that they have received 

an executed copy of this Agreement and will be sensitive tot eh commonly accepted 
local standards of civility and conduct incidental to their performances. 

 
6. Binding Agreement.  In the event any of the provisions of this Agreement 

are rendered to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding on the parties 
hereto. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby agree and accept the foregoing 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and each of the parties have authorized their 
official representatives to execute on the date as shown herein. 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Performer Printed Name    Township Official Printed Name 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Performer Signature    Township Official Signature 
 
 

Date: _________________________ 



04/01/22 

1 
 

2022 SUMMER CONCERTS IN THE PARK PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), made and entered into this 1st day of 
April 2022, between Allendale Charter Township of 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401 (the “Township”), and The Bob Marshall Band whose 
address is 3368 Breezewood Ct. Ortonville, MI 48462, hereinafter referred to as (the 
“Artist(s)”). 
 
 WITNESSETH, the Township contracts for the services of Artist(s) as an 
independent contractor, not as an employee, on the terms and conditions set forth 
below.  Artist(s) agree to render to the Township services as follows: 
 
Name of Artist(s): The Bob Marshall Band 
 

Date of Event: July 26, 2022 
 

Location: Allendale Township Park/Band Shell, 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401. 

 
Type of Show/Event: Concert 

 
Hours of Performance: 6:00p.m. – 8:00p.m. 

 
Compensation:  
  
 Compensation/Agreement: $1,200.00 (the “Fee”) will be paid at completion of 

performance.   
 
Payment Agreement: 
 
 Check to be issued to: 
 
  Name: _____________________________________________________ 
   
  Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Phone Contact(s): ____________________________________________ 
 
  Email: _____________________________________________________ 
 
  Social Security Number or Federal ID Number: _____________________ 
 

1. Artist(s) Expenses.  The Artist(s) agrees that the Fee is inclusive of all 
expenses, accommodations, traveling expenses to and from the venue, and covers any 
costs incurred by the Artist(s), except as expressly provided in this agreement.  The 
Artist(s) shall be responsible to supply all necessary equipment specifically including, 
but not limited to microphones, instruments, etc.  The Township shall supply electricity.   



04/01/22 

2 
 

2. Force Majeure.  Neither the Artist(s) nor the Township will be liable for 
any failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement where such breach is due to 
any of the following: regulations of public authorities, inclement weather, epidemic, acts 
of God, or any other legitimate cause beyond the reasonable control of the parties. 

 
3. Indemnification.  The Artist(s) is responsible only for its own conduct.  

The Artist(s) will be compensated by the Township for any and all damage done to the 
Artist(s) equipment by the Township, its agents or guests.  The Artist(s) shall indemnify 
and hold the Township harmless from any and all property damage or personal injury 
directly related to the conduct of the Artist(s).   

 
4. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 

accordance with, the laws of the State of Michigan.  The Artist(s) and the Township 
each submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts in the State of Michigan for the enforcement 
of this Agreement.   

 
5. Acknowledgment.  The Artist(s) acknowledges that they have received 

an executed copy of this Agreement and will be sensitive tot eh commonly accepted 
local standards of civility and conduct incidental to their performances. 

 
6. Binding Agreement.  In the event any of the provisions of this Agreement 

are rendered to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding on the parties 
hereto. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby agree and accept the foregoing 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and each of the parties have authorized their 
official representatives to execute on the date as shown herein. 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Performer Printed Name    Township Official Printed Name 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Performer Signature    Township Official Signature 
 
 

Date: _________________________ 



04/01/22 

1 
 

2022 SUMMER CONCERTS IN THE PARK PERFORMANCE AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), made and entered into this 1st day of 
April 2022, between Allendale Charter Township of 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401 (the “Township”), and The Stone Soul Rhythm Band 
whose address is 8725 Pierce St. Allendale, MI 49401, hereinafter referred to as (the 
“Artist(s)”). 
 
 WITNESSETH, the Township contracts for the services of Artist(s) as an 
independent contractor, not as an employee, on the terms and conditions set forth 
below.  Artist(s) agree to render to the Township services as follows: 
 
Name of Artist(s): The Stone Soul Rhythm Band 
 

Date of Event: July 19, 2022 
 

Location: Allendale Township Park/Band Shell, 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401. 

 
Type of Show/Event: Concert 

 
Hours of Performance: 6:00p.m. – 8:00p.m. 

 
Compensation:  
  
 Compensation/Agreement: $500.00 (the “Fee”) will be paid at completion of 

performance.   
 
Payment Agreement: 
 
 Check to be issued to: 
 
  Name: _____________________________________________________ 
   
  Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Phone Contact(s): ____________________________________________ 
 
  Email: _____________________________________________________ 
 
  Social Security Number or Federal ID Number: _____________________ 
 

1. Artist(s) Expenses.  The Artist(s) agrees that the Fee is inclusive of all 
expenses, accommodations, traveling expenses to and from the venue, and covers any 
costs incurred by the Artist(s), except as expressly provided in this agreement.  The 
Artist(s) shall be responsible to supply all necessary equipment specifically including, 
but not limited to microphones, instruments, etc.  The Township shall supply electricity.   



04/01/22 

2 
 

2. Force Majeure.  Neither the Artist(s) nor the Township will be liable for 
any failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement where such breach is due to 
any of the following: regulations of public authorities, inclement weather, epidemic, acts 
of God, or any other legitimate cause beyond the reasonable control of the parties. 

 
3. Indemnification.  The Artist(s) is responsible only for its own conduct.  

The Artist(s) will be compensated by the Township for any and all damage done to the 
Artist(s) equipment by the Township, its agents or guests.  The Artist(s) shall indemnify 
and hold the Township harmless from any and all property damage or personal injury 
directly related to the conduct of the Artist(s).   

 
4. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 

accordance with, the laws of the State of Michigan.  The Artist(s) and the Township 
each submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts in the State of Michigan for the enforcement 
of this Agreement.   

 
5. Acknowledgment.  The Artist(s) acknowledges that they have received 

an executed copy of this Agreement and will be sensitive tot eh commonly accepted 
local standards of civility and conduct incidental to their performances. 

 
6. Binding Agreement.  In the event any of the provisions of this Agreement 

are rendered to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding on the parties 
hereto. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby agree and accept the foregoing 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and each of the parties have authorized their 
official representatives to execute on the date as shown herein. 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Performer Printed Name    Township Official Printed Name 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Performer Signature    Township Official Signature 
 
 

Date: _________________________ 



04/01/22 

1 
 

2022 INDEPENDENCE DAY CONCERT IN THE PARK PERFORMANCE 
AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), made and entered into this 1st day of 
April 2022, between Allendale Charter Township of 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401 (the “Township”), and Wyatt & Shari Knapp whose address 
is 2151 18 Mile Road NE, Cedar Springs, MI 49319, hereinafter referred to as (the 
“Artist(s)”). 
 
 WITNESSETH, the Township contracts for the services of Artist(s) as an 
independent contractor, not as an employee, on the terms and conditions set forth 
below.  Artist(s) agree to render to the Township services as follows: 
 
Name of Artist(s): Wyatt & Shari Knapp 
 

Date of Event: July 4, 2022 
 

Location: Allendale Township Park/Band Shell, 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, 
Allendale, Michigan 49401. 

 
Type of Show/Event: Concert 

 
Hours of Performance: 12:00p.m. – 2:00p.m. 

 
Compensation:  
  
 Compensation/Agreement: $400.00 (the “Fee”) will be paid at completion of 

performance.   
 
Payment Agreement: 
 
 Check to be issued to: 
 
  Name: _____________________________________________________ 
   
  Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 
  Phone Contact(s): ____________________________________________ 
 
  Email: _____________________________________________________ 
 
  Social Security Number or Federal ID Number: _____________________ 
 

1. Artist(s) Expenses.  The Artist(s) agrees that the Fee is inclusive of all 
expenses, accommodations, traveling expenses to and from the venue, and covers any 
costs incurred by the Artist(s), except as expressly provided in this agreement.  The 



04/01/22 

2 
 

Artist(s) shall be responsible to supply all necessary equipment specifically including, 
but not limited to microphones, instruments, etc.  The Township shall supply electricity.   

2. Force Majeure.  Neither the Artist(s) nor the Township will be liable for 
any failure to perform its obligations under this Agreement where such breach is due to 
any of the following: regulations of public authorities, inclement weather, epidemic, acts 
of God, or any other legitimate cause beyond the reasonable control of the parties. 

 
3. Indemnification.  The Artist(s) is responsible only for its own conduct.  

The Artist(s) will be compensated by the Township for any and all damage done to the 
Artist(s) equipment by the Township, its agents or guests.  The Artist(s) shall indemnify 
and hold the Township harmless from any and all property damage or personal injury 
directly related to the conduct of the Artist(s).   

 
4. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 

accordance with, the laws of the State of Michigan.  The Artist(s) and the Township 
each submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts in the State of Michigan for the enforcement 
of this Agreement.   

 
5. Acknowledgment.  The Artist(s) acknowledges that they have received 

an executed copy of this Agreement and will be sensitive tot eh commonly accepted 
local standards of civility and conduct incidental to their performances. 

 
6. Binding Agreement.  In the event any of the provisions of this Agreement 

are rendered to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and shall be binding on the parties 
hereto. 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby agree and accept the foregoing 
terms and provisions of this Agreement and each of the parties have authorized their 
official representatives to execute on the date as shown herein. 
 
 
________________________   ______________________________ 
Performer Printed Name    Township Official Printed Name 
 
 
___________________________  ______________________________ 
Performer Signature    Township Official Signature 
 
 

Date: _________________________ 



Draft 
04/01/22 

RESOLUTION 2022-XX 

General Fund Unrestricted Fund Balance Target Policy 

At a regular meeting of the Township Board of the Charter Township of Allendale, Ottawa 
County, Michigan, held at the Township Hall located at 6676 Lake Michigan Drive, Allendale, 
Ottawa County, Michigan on June 28, 2022 at 6:00 pm. 
 
Present: ________________________________________________________________ 

 
Absent: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
The Township Supervisor advised the Township Board that the next order of business was 
the consideration of a resolution to authorize the implementation of a general fund 
unrestricted fund balance target policy for the Township. 
 
After discussion, the following resolution was offered by: _________________________ and 
supported by ________________________. 
 

RESOLUTION 

 

WHEREAS, Allendale Charter Township is a community with a rich rural character and a history 
of fiscal prudence and as one the fastest growing municipalities in Michigan, faces many risks 
and opportunities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Board deems that it is in the best interest of the Township to make 
certain the Township is financially stable in the short and long-term; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Township Board recognizes the importance of maintaining an appropriate 
unrestricted fund balance (“Unrestricted Fund Balance”), and that the use of an Unrestricted 
Fund Balance target is the best tool available to direct staff and ensure oversight by the Board; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Board of the Charter Township of 
Allendale, Ottawa County, Michigan as follows: 
 

1. After evaluating the Township’s operating characteristics, tax base, reliability of non-
property tax revenue sources, working capital needs, impact on bond rating, State and 
local economic outlooks, emergency risks, and other contingent issues, the Township 
establishes a goal of maintaining a General Fund Unrestricted Fund Balance target of 40% 
of the Township’s operating expenses of the last audited fiscal year. 
 



Draft 
04/01/22 

2. The Finance Director will be required to provide a monthly fund balance report to the 
Township Board. 
 

3. If the Unrestricted Fund Balance falls below 25% the Township Board will be notified at 
the next Township Board meeting. 
 

4. If the Unrestricted Fund Balance falls below 20% the Township Board will be notified 
immediately, and all non-essential expenditures will be denied until guidance can be given 
by the Township Board. 
 

5. This resolution has been adopted by the Township to recognize the financial importance 
of a stable and sufficient level of the Unrestricted Fund Balance.  However, the Township 
reserves the right to appropriate funds from the unrestricted fund balance for 
emergencies and other requirements the Township believes to be in the best interest of 
the Township. 
 

6. Once the Township achieves its goal of an appropriate level of Unrestricted Fund Balance, 
any excess funds may be utilized for other municipal fiscal purposes, including, without 
limitation additional capital improvement needs or tax rate stabilization or reduction 
purposes.  For example, by utilizing excess fund balances for capital improvements the 
Township will reduce the need to incur long term debt and will avoid creating an 
operating fund gap for subsequent fiscal years. 
 

7. All resolutions in conflict, in whole or in part, with this Resolution shall be repealed or 
revoked to the extent of any such conflict. 

Yeas: _________________________________________________________________________ 

Nays: _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution declared adopted on _______________, 2022. 
 
______________________________   ________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen      Adam Elenbaas 
Allendale Charter Township Clerk   Allendale Charter Township Supervisor 
 
The undersigned Clerk of Allendale Charter Township hereby certifies that this Resolution was 
duly adopted by the Allendale Charter Township Board of Trustees at a meeting held on the 
__________ day of __________, 2022 pursuant to proper notice and compliance with Act No. 
267 of the Public Acts of 1976. 
 

______________________________________ 
Jody L. Hansen 
Clerk, Allendale Charter Township 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Holiday and PTO Proposed Updates 

Prepared by Lydale Weaver 

On 4/11/2022 

Board of Trustees: 

Tim VanBennekom and Lydale Weaver met with the personnel committee in regards to 

some proposed changes to holiday and PTO.  Below are the highlights of proposed changes. 

• Martin Luther King Jr added as observed holiday 8 hours for full time.  Township Hall will 
close for the full day  
 

• New Year’s Eve changing from 4 hours to 8 hours for full time staff.  Township Hall will 
close for the full day  
 

• Increased total PTO hours in year 1 from 88 hours to 104 hours. Included in that 104 
hours is 40 hours of PTO added to the employee’s PTO bank upon completion of their 
orientation period. The employee will accrue the other 64 hours over the course of their 
first year assuming they reach 40 paid hours each week. 

 

We opened it up for questions and clarification from the committee.  After all the questions 

were answered the committee felt that the proposed changes should move forward for the 

Township.  We are proposing these changes to update immediately upon approval. 

 

Respectfully, 

Lydale Weaver 

HR Director 











The Robert R. Robinson
Memorial Scholarship Fund

The Michigan Townships Association administers a scholarship fund  
established in memory of Robert R. Robinson, former executive 
director of the Association. The purpose of the scholarship fund is to 
help students  in Michigan who are preparing for a career in public 
administration.

The scholarship will be awarded on a competitive basis, as determined 
by the applicant’s academic achievement, community involvement 
and commitment to a career in local government administration.

Submit application materials to:

Robert R. Robinson Memorial Scholarship Fund
Michigan Townships Association

P.O. Box 80078, Lansing, Michigan 48908-0078
(517) 321-6467  Fax (517) 321-8908

julie@michigantownships.org

Robert R. Robinson
(1920-1987)

Supervisor, Meridian Charter Township
(1959-1969)

Michigan Townships Association Legislative Director
(1969-1975)

MTA Executive Director
(1975-1983)

MTA Associate Director
(1983-1984)

Cofounder and Board Member 
National Association of Towns and Townships

(1977-1984)

NATaT President
(1978-1980)

Eligibility Requirements

• Scholarship recipients are selected from nominees submitted
by a Michigan township board that is a member in good
standing of the Michigan Townships Association.

• Scholarship applicants must be a junior, senior or graduate
student enrolled in a Michigan college or university; pursuing
a degree in public administration; and must be considering a
career in local government administration.

• The scholarship is awarded on a competitive basis, as
determined by the applicant’s academic achievement,
community involvement and commitment to a career in local
government administration.

Application Specifications

• Scholarship applicants must submit the following information,
as applicable:
• name
• home address and email address
• school address
• college or university where enrolled
• cumulative grade point average
• declared major
• expected graduation date
• home community activities
• school community activities
• school extracurricular activities
• career goals in local government

• Scholarship applicants must also submit:
• a letter of recommendation from a professor or instructor
• a copy of a resolution of support from an MTA-member

township board in good standing (resolutions from other
types of entities or from individual public officials are not
sufficient)

• a short essay on an important issue facing local government

In order to be considered by the Robert R. Robinson 
Memorial Scholarship Fund Board of Directors, 
applications must be received no later than May 31.



The Michigan Townships Association promotes the interests of 
Michigan townships by fostering strong, vibrant communities; 

advocating legislation to meet 21st century challenges; developing 
knowledgeable, township officials and enthusiastic supporters 

of township government; and encouraging ethical practices 
of elected officials who uphold the traditions and unique 

characteristics of township government and the values of the 
people of Michigan. 

The Robert R. Robinson
Memorial Scholarship Fund

Application Information

A tax-deductible scholarship fund for Michigan students 
administered by the Michigan Townships Association

Supporting Grassroots Leadership Education



RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR MICHIGAN TOWNSHIPS ASSOCIATION’S 
ROBERT R. ROBINSON SCHOLARSHIP APPLICATION 

WHEREAS, the Michigan Townships Association administers a scholarship fund established in memory of 
Robert R. Robinson, former executive director of the association; and  

WHEREAS, the purpose of the scholarship fund is to help students in Michigan who are preparing for a 
career in public administration; and 

WHEREAS, the scholarship is awarded on a competitive basis to a junior, senior or graduate student 
enrolled in a Michigan college or university, who is pursuing a degree in public administration and 
considering a career in local government administration, as determined by the applicant’s academic 
achievement, community involvement and commitment to a career in local government administration; 
and 

WHEREAS, _______________ (student’s name), currently a ___________ (junior, senior or graduate 
student) at ______________ (Michigan college or university), has demonstrated academic achievement 
with a ____ grade point average; and 

WHEREAS, ____________ (include any other relevant achievements or information); and 

WHEREAS, the scholarship application requires a resolution of support from an MTA-member Michigan 
township board;  

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the _______________________ Township Board supports the application 
of ______________ Township resident _________________________________ for the Robert R. 
Robinson Memorial Scholarship. 



The Robert R. Robinson Memorial Scholarship Fund Application 

 

Name: Serena Kruithoff  

Dear Michigan Township Association, 

  I hope that you are all doing well today. Just a little bit about myself, I am currently a 
junior here at Grand Valley State University. My current grade point average is 3.88. My degree 
is in Public and Nonprofit Administration, with a Business minor. My area of emphasis in this 
major is Community Development and Planning. My expected graduation date is next winter 
(April 2023). My home community, school community, and extracurricular activities include the 
following: Volunteering for the church nursery and events, Adopt-A-Highway, Mel Trotter 
Ministries, The Other Way Ministries, as well as Students Leaving a Mark here at Grand Valley 
State University.   

Recently, I was able to go to Biloxi, Mississippi with the student organization mentioned 
above. On this service trip, we volunteered with many nonprofit organizations. One of the 
nonprofits that we worked with directly was Loaves and Fishes. On this particular day, we 
helped this organization clear out a new building so that they can use this location to further their 
mission. However, we also worked with American Red Cross, 34th Street Community Garden, 
and Lynn Meadows. Overall, I really enjoyed this trip and working hard to make a difference 
within the Biloxi community.  

My future career goals in the local government community would be to one day be on a 
board of directors for a local nonprofit. However, I also have the goal of becoming a leader 
within a company and using my Public Administration degree to do so. Whether that is within a 
nonprofit or some sort of city management position.  

 

 

 

Thank you for taking me into consideration for this scholarship. I greatly appreciate your 
time.  

Respectfully,  

Serena Kruithoff 

Issues Facing the Local Government in Grand Rapids 

I have lived in Michigan my entire life, and I think that it is an amazing city. Nonetheless, 
like every city, there are many different issues that our local government is currently facing/can 



face in the future. I think that a huge current issue that our local government is facing is the 
recurring issue of Redlining. This is an issue where certain areas are taxed more than others, 
making it really hard for minorities to ever move out of certain neighborhoods. I was never 
aware of this issue until I took classes at Grand Valley. Through my public and nonprofit classes, 
I was taught more about this issue. However, I think it is a huge issue that the rest of the public is 
oblivious to. Detroit suffers the most from Redlining, but I think it is an issue that Grand Rapids 
still suffers from daily, and it needs to be resolved.  Not only do I think this is an issue that our 
city of Grand Rapids faces, but I also think that there is just a housing crisis issue in general. Due 
to this housing crisis homeless number continues to increase as well (which overall creates 
another issue for the local government).    

Despite the issue of Redlining, another issue that I think our local government faces is the 
lack of funding for small nonprofits. Since I am a nonprofit and public administration major, this 
issue weighs heavily on my heart. There are a lot of nonprofits located in Grand Rapids. I think 
that the most well-known nonprofit is The Young Men’s Christian Association (YMCA). 
Therefore, people are more likely to donate their money to this organization due to the fact that it 
is so well known. This nonprofit is amazing and it does a lot of good for the local community. 
However, since they get so much funding I think that it takes away funding from smaller 
nonprofits that are in need of donations. The YMCA is just one of the larger nonprofits, there are 
many others that receive large donations as well. For example, I think that a local nonprofit that 
could receive more funding is The Other Way Ministries. I briefly volunteered with this 
organization during COVID-19. This organization strives to better the community through their 
community garden, which helps provide food for their food kitchen, as well as through education 
courses for children. This is just one of the many small nonprofits in Grand Rapids that could be 
expanded through more local government funding.  

  Like every other city, Grand Rapids is not perfect by any means. Despite this, it is still 
capable of changing for the better. Although I believe Redlining is prominent and small 
nonprofits do not receive the funding that they deserve, does not mean that I believe this local 
government does not love its residents. In fact, I would argue that Grand Rapids strives to be a 
loving and acceptable community. However, I still believe that the issues mentioned above can 
be resolved. As mentioned previously, I was unaware of these issues until I took classes at 
GVSU that mentioned these problems. Therefore, I think these are just two issues that the public 
could be more educated on. This way the whole community can come together to help resolve 
these issues and better the future of our local government.  



 
Geography and Sustainable Planning Department 

Mackinac Hall B4-105, 1 Campus Drive 
Allendale, MI 49401 USA 

+1-616-331-3065 
 

March 30, 2022 

Elena Lioubimtseva, Professor of Geography and Sustainable Planning 

To Whom It May Concern 

 

Dear Selection Committee Members, 

I am writing to enthusiastically support the application of Serena Kruithoff for the Robert R. 
Robinson Memorial Scholarship. I have known Serena as a student in my Global Climate and 
Environmental Change class and am very impressed by the breadth of her interests, her 
dedication to community engagement, and scholarly curiosity. Serena is currently working with 
me on a research project titled “Climate Crisis and its Effects on the Great Lakes and Health", 
which she would present publicly April 13 at GVSU Student Scholar Day 2022. She has 
excellent research, critical thinking, communication, and analytical skills. 

Serena’s performance as a student has been excellent.  Being a Public and Non-Profit 
Administration major and Business minor, she maintains GPA is 3.88 and is very active in her 
community and at GVSU being involved in a variety of extra-curricular activities and civic 
projects. 

I am very confident that Serena would do many great things in her life and career. She has 
excellent goals and is already well equipped with many skills to achieve them. She has very 
strong credentials qualifying her for the Robert R. Robinson Memorial Scholarship. I hope the 
Committee gives her a very strong consideration. 

 

Please, do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Elena Lioubimtseva, she/her 

Professor of Geography and Sustainable Planning 
Grand Valley State University, Mackinac Hall B4202, 1 Campus Drive, Allendale, MI 49401 
 


	3-28-2022 Proposed Minutes.pdf
	PROPOSED
	PROCEEDINGS OF THE ALLENDALE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	MARCH SESSION 2nd DAY


